Executive 08 January 2025

EXECUTIVE

A meeting of the Executive was held on Wednesday 8 January 2025.

PRESENT: Mayor C Cooke (Chair) and Councillors T Furness, P Gavigan, L Henman, J Ryles,

P Storey, J Thompson and N Walker

ALSO IN D Hodgson (Local Democracy Reporter)

ATTENDANCE:

OFFICERS: M Adams, C Benjamin, S Bonner, B Carr, G Field, R Horniman, A Hoy, A Humble,

E Scollay and J Tynan

APOLOGIES FOR

ABSENCE:

None

24/63 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.

24/64 MINUTES - EXECUTIVE - 4 DECEMBER 2024

The minutes of the Executive meeting held on 4 December 2024 were submitted and approved as a correct record.

24/65 **COMMUNITY RECOVERY FUND**

The Executive Member for Neighbourhoods submitted a report for Executive's consideration.

The report sought approval to spend £655,000 of grant funding provided by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to support the recovery of the recent riots that took place in Middlesbrough on Sunday 4 August 2024.

On Sunday 4 August 2024, Middlesbrough was the focus of a protest originally linked online to an incident in Southport. Protests were planned to take place in several other areas across the country. Approximately 400 people attended the protest and marched through the centre of Middlesbrough. The protest led to a riot occurring within the town that lasted late into the evening.

The riot caused significant damage to property and caused a high level of fear and alarm amongst many citizens who live and work in the affected areas. Over £300,000 of damage was caused to Teesside University buildings alone, multiple streets in the centre of Middlesbrough were targeted with houses and vehicles being damaged. Cars were set on fire and businesses looted. Some residents were at home during the riots with children and families and were terrified by the damage to their homes and property. Many residents, particularly those from ethnic minority communities, remain distressed by the violent disorder they witnessed and the fear they experienced at the time.

The day after the riots Middlesbrough showed its true nature and over 300 volunteers arrived at the entrance to Albert Park to help clean up and show support for those impacted. Many had been out earlier that morning and began the clean-up work and to begin the repair of those communities that at suffered from the effects of the riot.

Later that week misinformation spread of a repeat of the riots and businesses, educational establishments and health providers closed their doors and the town emptied in fear. Thankfully this did not transpire.

MHCLG originally allocated £600,000 to Middlesbrough Council via the Community Recovery Fund (CRF). MHCLG said the funding should be used as areas best saw fit, in partnership with local communities. More recently MHCLG has provided an additional £55,000 in revenue funding, bringing the total grant to £655,000.

OPTIONS

The alternative was to not accept the grant funding, however this was not recommended as the impact was still evident and the grant funding would help key partners to respond to the riots and support the recovery.

ORDERED

That Executive approve the spend outlined in the report on the £655,000 grant funding provided by MHCLG to support the recovery of the riots that took place in Middlesbrough on Sunday 4th August 2024.

REASONS

The Council and its partners established a multi-agency recovery structure, with Gold and Silver recovery groups set up to work on a plan to support residents and find a way of returning to a state of normality.

The constituents of the Gold recovery group included senior representatives from the following organisations: Middlesbrough Council; Thirteen Group; Cleveland Police; Office for the Police and Crime Commissioner; Teesside University; Tees Esk and Wear Valley Mental Health Trust; Middlesbrough Voluntary Development Agency; Probation Service and Cleveland Fire Brigade.

This group set the key objectives for silver group along with the three key areas of focus for grant funding:

- 1. Engagement
- 2. Events within neighbourhoods
- 3. Youth Provision

It was imperative that the Council and its partners worked 'with' the community and not do things 'to' them. Therefore, Gold group asked Silver to develop key areas of work that fit into the three key areas of focus for the grant funding. This resulted in the subgroups being established as set out in paragraph 3.4 of the report. Gold group then approved the recommendations put forward from Silver group as set out in paragraph 4.7 of the report. A proportion of the funding would be distributed in the form of grants, direct to community groups, to allow them to lead on activities.

The constituents of the Silver group included representatives from the following organisations: Cleveland Police; Middlesbrough Council; Office for the Police and Crime Commissioner; BME Network; Thirteen Group; Fire Brigade; Teesside University; Local Resilience Forum; Mayors Office; Exec member for Community Safety. The following voluntary and community organisations were also included in Silver group: MVDA; Streets Ahead; Amal Project; Investing in People and Cultures; Localmotion; Hindu Cultural Centre; Mosques; Caritas and Ubuntu. This group had established the following multi agency subgroups that had an input into the proposals for spending the £655k grant funding:

- Communications Group
- Young People and engagement
- Community Conversations
- Hate Crime and Community Tensions
- Community Engagement and Participation
- Victims and Perpetrators

The proposals set out in paragraph 4.7 of the report were in line with the conditions of the grant. Those grants supported a range of projects that would help the town in respect of increasing its level of resilience and community cohesion.

24/66 PUBLICATION LOCAL PLAN - UPDATE

The Executive Member for Development submitted a report for Executive's consideration, the purpose of which was to update Executive on the new National Planning Policy Framework

and the impact it had on the preparation of the Publication Local Plan.

In January 2024, the Executive approved the Draft Local Plan. This was a non-statutory stage that enabled community engagement on the plan between 1 February and 15 March 2024. The Draft Local Plan was made available online and in various Council buildings and libraries, and there was a series of 17 drop in events held across Middlesbrough.

During the consultation, over 2,000 responses were received on the Draft Local Plan, along with 4 petition-style responses, all of which were being considered in preparing the Publication Local Plan. To address some of the issues raised and ensure a robust evidence base, further work had been completed in house or commissioned, including:

- Transport Assessment
- Strategic Flood Risk Assessment
- Viability Assessment
- Gypsy & Traveller Site Assessment
- Habitats Regulation Assessment
- Heritage Impact Assessment
- Infrastructure Delivery Plan

The Local Development Scheme, which set out the timetable for preparing the Local Plan, indicated that the Publication Local Plan would be prepared for January 2024 and that is what the Council had been working towards.

A Member commented that this process was an important part of the Council's re-set priorities.

OPTIONS

Not to progress the Publication Local Plan under transitional arrangements. This would mean the Council would no longer progress the Local Plan as agreed previously by the Council and would retain existing out-of-date policies for longer. Work on the Local Plan would have to restart in order to meet the requirements of the new NPPF. This would involve updating the evidence base in full. It was anticipated that this would take approximately 2-3 years and come at significant financial cost to the Council.

AGREED that Executive:

- 1. Notes the issues arising from the new National Planning Policy Framework and endorses the revised approach to preparing the Publication Local Plan as set out in this report.
- 2. Notes that a new timetable for preparing the Local Plan will be set out in a revised Local Development Scheme.
- 3. Notes the update regarding Teessaurus Park.

REASONS

It was a statutory requirement to prepare a Local Plan that identified land for development and could be used as a basis for determining planning applications. The Local Plan was critical for delivering some of the Council's key strategic objectives, in particular population retention, increasing the housing supply and supporting economic growth. The development it would help secure would make a positive contribution to the financial sustainability of the Council.

Following earlier stages of plan preparation, including two separate periods of public consultation, the Local Plan was now being finalised for 'Publication' stage. This was a statutory stage, the purpose of which was to make the Local Plan available for inspection and invite formal representations upon it. It would provide the opportunity for interested parties and stakeholders to make formal representations, which must relate only to matters of soundness or legal compliance.

The Government published its revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) on 12th December 2024. This set out new planning policies that needed to be taken into consideration when preparing Local Plans and making decisions on planning

applications. Critically, it placed new requirements on Council's regarding the level of housing they needed to plan for in their areas.

To avoid returning to an earlier stage in the plan making process and accommodate the new national planning policies, it will be necessary to reach 'Publication' stage no later than 12th March 2025. This will allow the Plan to progress under transitional arrangements and be examined under the previous NPPF.

24/67 ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE CONSIDERED.

24/68 **EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC**

ORDERED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that, if present, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information.

24/69 EXEMPT - RESTORATION OF THE OLD TOWN HALL: HERITAGE LOTTERY FUNDING

The Executive Member for Development submitted a report for Executive's consideration.

ORDERED

That the recommendations of the report be approved.

REASONS

The decision was supported for the reasons outlined in the report.

All decisions will come into force after five working days following the day the decision(s) was published unless the decision becomes subject to the call in procedures.